
VILLAGE OF SOMERS 
7511 12th STREET 

SOMERS, WI 53171 
 

 VILLAGE BOARD MEETING 
AGENDA 
11-12-19 

 5:30 P.M. 
 

1. Call to order 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

3. Consent and Approval of Minutes of Regular meeting on 10-22-19; Vouchers dated 10-31-
19 & 11-07-19 
 

4. Correspondence:  
   
5. Citizen Comments   

 
6. Trustee Comments 

 
7. Action on Ordinance No. 19-039 An Ordinance to Repeal and Recreate Sections 3.08 of 

the Code of Ordinances of the Village of Somers Re-designating 6th Street West from the 
Intersection with Sheridan Road to be Named 6th Way 
 

8. Action on Ordinance No. 19-040 An Ordinance to Repeal and Recreate Sections 
7.02(N)(1) of the Code of Ordinances of the Village of Somers Relating to Parking Hours 
Restricted (6th Way) 
 

9. Action on Ordinance No. 19-041 An Ordinance to Repeal and Recreate Sections 
7.10(A)(2)(a) of the Code of Ordinances of the Village of Somers Relating to Speed Limits 
Established (6th Way)  
 

10. Action on Ordinance No. 19-042 An Ordinance to Repeal and Recreate Sections 
7.13(A)(50) of the Code of Ordinances of the Village of Somers Relating to Stop Signs (6th 
Way)  
 

11. Administrator’s Report on Pritzker Military Archive  
 

12. Action on Request for Comprehensive Land Use Plan Amendment by Ronald J Birchell, 
1276 100th Ave. Kenosha WI 53144; Alvin R & Jean R Wilks Revocable Trust, 17629 
Durand Ave. Union Grove WI 53182; Francesco M & Natalie C Rovella, 1340 100th Ave. 
Kenosha WI 53144; Joseph A & Christina M Funk, 11201 12th St. Kenosha WI 53144; 
Yosef Hakimi Family Trust, Valentine Hakimi, 650 Laurel Ave., Ste 205, Highland Park IL 
60035 (Owners); Mary Parthe, Berteau Honore LLC, 104 S. Michigan Ave., No. 500, 
Chicago, IL 60603 (Agent), request an amendment to the land use plan map for the 
Village of Somers (Map 80) as adopted in the Multi-Jurisdictional Comprehensive Plan for 
Kenosha County: 2035 from "Business/Industrial Park", “Secondary Environmental 
Corridor” and “Other Conservancy Land to be Preserved” to "Business/Industrial Park", 
“Park and Recreational”, “Secondary Environmental Corridor” and “Other Conservancy 
Land to be Preserved” on Tax Parcel #s 82-4-222-172-0202, 82-4-222-172-0401, 82-4-
222-172-0402, 82-4-222-181-0100, 82-4-222-181-0200, 82-4-222-181-0300, 82-4-222-
181-0400, 82-4-222-182-0201, 82-4-222-182-0202, located in the NW 1/4 of Section 17 
and the NE & NW ¼ of Section 18, T2N, R22E, Village of Somers. 



 
13. Action on Request for Rezoning by Ronald J Birchell, 1276 100th Ave Kenosha WI 53144; 

Alvin R & Jean R Wilks Revocable Trust, 17629 Durand Ave Union Grove WI 53182; 
Francesco M & Natalie C Rovella, 1340 100th Ave Kenosha WI 53144; Joseph A & 
Christina M Funk, 11201 12th St Kenosha WI 53144; Yosef Hakimi Family Trust, Valentine 
Hakimi, 650 Laurel Ave., Ste 205, Highland Park IL 60035 (Owners); Mary Parthe, Berteau 
Honore LLC, 104 S. Michigan Ave., No. 500, Chicago, IL 60603 (Agent), request a 
rezoning from A-1 Agricultural Preservation Dist., A-2 General Agricultural Dist. and C-1 
Lowland Resource Conservancy Dist. to PR-1 Park-Recreational Dist., I-1 Institutional 
Dist. and C-1 Lowland Resource Conservancy Dist. on Tax Parcel #s 82-4-222-172-0202, 
82-4-222-172-0401, 82-4-222-172-0402, 82-4-222-181-0100, 82-4-222-181-0200, 82-4-
222-181-0300, 82-4-222-181-0400, 82-4-222-182-0201, 82-4-222-182-0202, located in the 
NW 1/4 of Section 17 and the NE & NW ¼ of Section 18, T2N, R22E, Village of Somers. 
 

14. Action on Request by Ronald J Birchell, 1276 100th Ave Kenosha WI 53144; Alvin R & 
Jean R Wilks Revocable Trust, 17629 Durand Ave Union Grove WI 53182; Francesco M & 
Natalie C Rovella, 1340 100th Ave Kenosha WI 53144; Joseph A & Christina M Funk, 
11201 12th St Kenosha WI 53144; Yosef Hakimi Family Trust, Valentine Hakimi, 650 
Laurel Ave., Ste 205, Highland Park IL 60035 (Owners); Mary Parthe, Berteau Honore 
LLC, 104 S. Michigan Ave., No. 500, Chicago, IL 60603 (Agent), for site plan on Tax 
Parcel #s 82-4-222-172-0202, 82-4-222-172-0401, 82-4-222-172-0402, 82-4-222-181-
0100, 82-4-222-181-0200, 82-4-222-181-0300, 82-4-222-181-0400, 82-4-222-182-0201, 
82-4-222-182-0202, located in the NW 1/4 of Section 17 and the NE & NW ¼ of Section 
18, T2N, R22E, Village of Somers.   
 

15. Approval of Operator Licenses: Clerk Recommends Approval: Tyler Nitsch, Angela 
Lasecki, Corrine M. Pozel, Lorien M. Van Dyke 
 

16. Adjourn 
 
                
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

I hereby certify that as the designee of the chief elected official of the Village of Somers, I posted this notice of the Nov. 12, 2019 
Village Board Meeting Agenda in 1 public place & on the Village website. 
Dated this 8th day of Nov., 2019                                               Tim Kitzman, Clerk-Treasurer 
Requests from person with disabilities who need assistance to participate in this meeting should be made to the Clerk’s Office at 262-859-2822 
with as much notice as possible. Notice is hereby given that members of the Village Board may participate telephonically. Notice is hereby given 
that members of the Town Board may be in attendance for the sole purpose of gathering information. A quorum may be present. However, no 
Board action will be taken. 



 
VILLAGE OF SOMERS  

MINUTES of the REGULAR MEETING  
October 22, 2019 

 
The Regular Meeting of the Somers Village Board was called to order at 5:30 p.m. by President 
George Stoner at the Village Hall, 7511 12th Street. 
    
Present: President George Stoner, Trustees David Geertsen, Jack Aupperle, Joe Smith, Gregg 
Sinnen. Excused: Trustees Jackie Nelson & Karl Ostby. Also present: Assistant Administrator 
Jason Peters, Attorney Jeff Davison & Clerk-Treasurer Timothy Kitzman.  
 
All stood for the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
Consent and Approval of Minutes of Regular meeting on 10-08-19; Vouchers dated 10-10-19 
& 10-17-19 

 
Trustee Aupperle moved to approve Minutes of Regular meeting on 10-08-19; Vouchers dated 10-
10-19 & 10-17-19, second by Trustee Smith. Motion carried 5-0.   

 
Correspondence: none 

 
Citizen Comments: none 
 
Trustee Comments 
 
Trustee Sinnen reminded all of the Council of Governments meeting on November 9th in Paddock 
Lake. Trustee Aupperle announced Shopko Optical is locating next to Starbucks and will open 
shortly. President Stoner reported the Parkview Tavern site housing project is progressing. 

 
Action on request by Gary R & Linda B Smith, 3320 Green Bay Rd, Kenosha WI 53144-1547 
(Owner), Danielle Mount, GreenbergFarrow, 21 South Evergreen Avenue, Suite 200, 
Arlington Heights, IL 60005 (Agent), for a rezoning from A-1 Agricultural Preservation Dist. 
to B-3 Highway Business Dist., on Tax Parcel# 82-4-222-271-0120, located in the NE 1/4 of 
Section 27, T2N, R22E, Village of Somers 

 
Action on request by Gary R & Linda B Smith, 3320 Green Bay Rd, Kenosha WI 53144-1547 
(Owner), Danielle Mount, GreenbergFarrow, 21 South Evergreen Avenue, Suite 200, 
Arlington Heights, IL 60005 (Agent), for a Conditional Use Permit for an automotive service 
& repair facility in the B-3 Highway Business Dist. on Tax Parcel# 82-4-222-271-0120, located 
in the NE 1/4 of Section 27, T2N, R22E, Village of Somers 

 
Action on request by Gary R & Linda B Smith, 3320 Green Bay Rd, Kenosha WI 53144-
1547(Owner), Danielle Mount, GreenbergFarrow, 21 South Evergreen Avenue, Suite 200, 
Arlington Heights, IL 60005 (Agent), for site plan & exterior fenestration review on Tax 
Parcel# 82-4-222-271-0120, located in the NE 1/4 of Section 27, T2N, R22E, Village of Somers 
 
Trustee Geertsen moved to approve above items 7-8-9, subject to the following: The conditional 
use permit shall be subject to the conditions present in the Village of Somers General Zoning and 
Shoreland/Floodplain Zoning Ordinance Section ZN 5.03(8)(b)13; Automotive Sales, Service and 
Repairs in the B-2, B-3, and B-5 Districts (shown below): a. All servicing and repair work shall be 
within an enclosed structure. Repair materials, new, used or junk parts shall not be stored outside 
unless the storage area has a solid fence enclosure. Junk materials shall be removed at least once 



a month to avoid unsightliness of the site. Fences shall be of uniform design and height and be 
properly maintained for aesthetic purposes. b. No cars shall be parked within the vision triangle and 
all parking lots shall meet all yard requirements. c. Lights shall not be beamed directly onto 
adjoining property. 2. Subject to a permit being obtained from the Wisconsin Dept. of Trans- 
portation to abandon the existing access to STH 31 (Green Bay Rd).  Said permit shall be obtained 
prior to receiving approval of any permits. 3.Subject to providing a cross access easement for 
future development of neighboring parcel to the north. 4.Subject to receiving stormwater approval 
by the Village of Somers Engineer. 5. Subject to implementation of a Developer’s Agreement 
between the Petitioner and the Village of Somers, second by Trustee Aupperle. Motion carried 5-0. 

 
Motion to award bid for 11th Place Lift Station Replacement to August Winter & Son, Inc., 
Appleton, WI in the amount of $1,235,000.00 
 
Trustee Geertsen moved to award bid for 11th Place Lift Station Replacement to August Winter & 
Son, Inc., Appleton, WI in the amount of $1,235,000.00, second by Trustee Aupperle. Motion 
carried 5-0. 

 
Action on proposed Ordinance No. 19-038 to repeal and recreate section 9.216 of the code of 
ordinances of the Village to Somers related to State Laws Adopted regarding party to crime 
acts 
 
Trustee Geertsen moved to waive the first reading of said ordinance, second by Trustee Aupperle. 
Motion carried 5-0. Trustee Geertsen moved to adopt proposed Ordinance No. 19-038 to repeal 
and recreate section 9.216 of the code of ordinances of the Village to Somers related to State Laws 
Adopted regarding party to crime acts, second by Trustee Aupperle. Motion carried 5-0. 
 
Approval of Operator Licenses: none  

 
Adjournment 
 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 5:44 p.m.  
 
Submitted by Timothy L. Kitzman, Clerk-Treasurer  
These minutes are not official until approved by the Village Board 







 
 

 
 

 
 

VILLAGE OF SOMERS 
VILLAGE BOARD 

MEETING ITEM MEMORANDUM  
              
MEETING DATE:  November 12th, 2019  
 
TO:    Village President Stoner and Village Trustees 
 
PREPARED BY:  Jason J. Peters, Assistant Administrator  
 
AGENDA ITEM:  #7  Action on Ordinance No. 19-039 An Ordinance to Repeal and  

Recreate Sections 3.08 of the Code of Ordinances of the Village of 
Somers Re-designating 6th Street West from the Intersection with 
Sheridan Road to be Named 6th Way 

 
   #8 Action on Ordinance No. 19-040 An Ordinance to Repeal and  

Recreate Sections 7.02(N)(1) of the Code of Ordinances of the 
Village of Somers Relating to Parking Hours Restricted 

 
#9 Action on Ordinance No. 19-041 An Ordinance to Repeal and 

Recreate Sections 7.10(A)(2)(a) of the Code of Ordinances of the 
Village of Somers Relating to Speed Limits Established 

 
#10 Action on Ordinance No. 19-042 An Ordinance to Repeal and 

Recreate Sections 7.13(A)(50) of the Code of Ordinances of the 
Village of Somers Relating to Stop Signs 

    
              
 
BACKGROUND:  
 

In late August, Administration received a call from Kenosha County regarding a situation 
occurring in the Village based on the name of one of our streets.  The street involved 
is 6th Street (dead-end street west of Sheridan Road).  Due to the zip codes involved, 
several of our residents’ mail and packages end up being delivered to the City of 
Racine.  There are about 5 homes that are affected.  Administration proposed the name 
change from 6th Street to 6th Way to help avoid the confusion.  This name was chosen with 
the help of Kenosha County.   

 
PRIOR ACTION TAKEN:  
 

At our September 17th Work Session, Administration made the Board aware of this issue.    
On September 17th, a letter went out to each parcel. The letter explained that to alleviate 



 
 

 
 

the situation the Village would entertain the idea of the change.  The letter also included a 
form for the owners to indicate their preference as to the changing the name from 6th 
Street to 6th Way.   We asked them to respond by October 31st.  Out of the 5 letters sent, 4 
were returned indicating they agreed with the name change.  At our November 5th Work 
Session, the Board was informed that the majority of the responses were in favor of the 
change.  On November 6th, letters went out to each parcel to inform them that the 
ordinances necessary to facilitate the name change would be acted on at our November 
12th Board meeting.   

 
SUGGESTED ACTION/ACTION REQUESTED/COMMENTS:  
 

Staff recommends approval of the attached ordinances to facilitate the name change of 6th 
Street to 6th Way.  In the event that the Village Board agrees with the suggested action, a 
suggested motion to approve would be as follows:   
 
 Ordinance 19-039 
 

“Motion to waive the first reading of Ordinance No. 19-039”   
 

“Motion to approve Ordinance No. 19-039 An Ordinance to Repeal and 
Recreate Sections 3.08 of the Code of Ordinances of the Village of Somers 
Re-designating 6th Street West from the Intersection with Sheridan Road to 
be Named 6th Way” 

 
  Ordinance 19-040 
 

“Motion to waive the first reading of Ordinance No. 19-040”   
 

“Motion to approve Ordinance No. 19-040 An Ordinance to Repeal and 
Recreate Sections 7.02(N)(1) of the Code of Ordinances of the Village of 
Somers Relating to Parking Hours Restricted” 

 
  Ordinance 19-041 
   

“Motion to waive the first reading of Ordinance No. 19-041”   
 

“Motion to approve Ordinance No. 19-041 An Ordinance to Repeal and 
Recreate Sections 7.10(A)(2)(a) of the Code of Ordinances of the Village 
of Somers Relating to Speed Limits Established” 

 
Ordinance 19-042  
 

“Motion to waive the first reading of Ordinance No. 19-042”   
 

“Motion to approve Ordinance No. 19-041 An Ordinance to Repeal and 
Recreate Sections 7.13(A)(50) of the Code of Ordinances of the Village of 
Somers Relating to Stop Signs” 

 
 
 



 
 

 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 Map of Area  
 

Signed Sheets in Support  
 
Ordinance No. 19-039  

 
 Ordinance No. 19-040 
 
 Ordinance No. 19-041 
 
 Ordinance No. 19-042 
 
  
 
 
 



1 inch = 197 feet

DISCLAIMER  This map is neither  a legally recorded map nor a  survey and is not intended to be used as one.  This drawing is a compilation of records, data and in formation located in various state, county and municipal o ffices 
and other sources affecting the area shown and is to  be used for reference purposes only.  Kenosha County is not responsible for any inaccuracies here in contained.  If discrepancies are found, please contact Kenosha County.

     

¨
Date Printed: 9/11/2019

KENOSHA COUNTY 
INTERACTIVE MAPPING











(Rev. 8/30/19)

ORDINANCE NO. 19-______

AN ORDINANCE TO REPEAL AND RECREATE SECTIONS 3.08
OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE VILLAGE OF SOMERS
RE-DESIGNATING 6th STREET WEST FROM THE INTERSECTION

WITH SHERIDAN ROAD TO BE NAMED 6th WAY
______________________________________________________________________________

The Village Board of Trustees of the Village of Somers, Kenosha County,

Wisconsin, hereby creates Section 3.08 of the Code of Ordinances of the Village of Somers

relating to the re-designation of 6th Street West of Sheridan Road to 6th Way to read as follows:

3.08 DESIGNATION OF 6th WAY.

(A) Purpose.  Under the methodology of designating streets within Kenosha County,
subsequently adopted and continued by the Village, both 6 th Street and 6th Place have been previously
designated and referred in ordinances.  It has come to the attention of the Village Board that the portion of
6th Street west of the intersection of Sheridan Road is contained within the zip code for the City of Racine,
Wisconsin, and receives mail delivery from the City of Racine Post Office.  The City of Racine also has a
street known as 6th Street which has caused confusion and errors in the delivery of mail for that portion of
6th Street located West of the intersection of Sheridan Road located in the Village.  In order to avoid further
confusion, the Village Board hereby designates that area currently known as 6 th Street which traverses
West from the intersection with Sheridan Road to be named 6 th Way, effective immediately.

(B) Implementation.  Effective immediately, Village staff shall notify the United States
Postal Service office in Racine, the Kenosha County Department of Planning and Development and such
other agencies or authorities of the re-designation of 6 th Street West of its intersection with Sheridan Road
in the Village from 6th Street to 6th Way and shall take such other steps as are necessary or advisable
including the placement of appropriate signage so as to implement the purposes of this ordinance.

Dated at Somers, Wisconsin, this _____ day of _____________, 2019.

VILLAGE OF SOMERS

      By:___________________________________
George Stoner, President

             Attest:___________________________________
Timothy Kitzman, Clerk/Treasurer

DAVISON LAW OFFICE, LTD. Page 1
 1207 55th Street, Kenosha, Wisconsin 53140

Telephone No. (262) 657-5165   Fax No. (262) 657-5517   E-mail: dmltd@sbcglobal.net

039



(Rev. 8/30/19)
Page 1

ORDINANCE NO.  2019-______

AN ORDINANCE TO REPEAL AND RECREATE SECTION 7.02(N)(1)
OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE VILLAGE OF SOMERS

RELATING TO PARKING HOURS RESTRICTED
______________________________________________________________________________

The Village Board of Trustees of the Village of Somers, Kenosha County, 

Wisconsin, hereby repeals and recreates Section 7.02(N)(1) of the Code of Ordinances of the

Village of Somers to read as follows: 

(1) 6th Way.

Dated at Somers, Wisconsin, this _____ day of ______________, 2019.

VILLAGE OF SOMERS

 By:___________________________________
George Stoner, President

 Attest:___________________________________
Timothy Kitzman, Clerk/Treasurer

DAVISON LAW OFFICE, LTD.
 1207 55th Street, Kenosha, Wisconsin 53140

Telephone No. (262) 657-5165   Fax No. (262) 657-5517   E-mail: dmltd@sbcglobal.net

040



(Rev. 8/30/19)
Page 1

ORDINANCE NO.  2019-______

AN ORDINANCE TO REPEAL AND RECREATE SECTION 7.10(A)(2)(a)
OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE VILLAGE OF SOMERS

RELATING TO SPEED LIMITS ESTABLISHED
______________________________________________________________________________

The Village Board of Trustees of the Village of Somers, Kenosha County, 

Wisconsin, hereby repeals and recreates Section 7.10(A)(2)(a) of the Code of Ordinances of the

Village of Somers to read as follows: 

(a) 6th Way.

Dated at Somers, Wisconsin, this _____ day of ______________, 2019.

VILLAGE OF SOMERS

 By:___________________________________
George Stoner, President

 Attest:___________________________________
Timothy Kitzman, Clerk/Treasurer

DAVISON LAW OFFICE, LTD.
 1207 55th Street, Kenosha, Wisconsin 53140

Telephone No. (262) 657-5165   Fax No. (262) 657-5517   E-mail: dmltd@sbcglobal.net

041



(Rev. 8/30/19)
Page 1

ORDINANCE NO.  2019-______

AN ORDINANCE TO REPEAL AND RECREATE SECTION 7.13(A)(50)
OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE VILLAGE OF SOMERS

RELATING TO STOP SIGNS
______________________________________________________________________________

The Village Board of Trustees of the Village of Somers, Kenosha County, 

Wisconsin, hereby repeals and recreates Section 7.13(A)(50) of the Code of Ordinances of the

Village of Somers to read as follows: 

(50) Vehicles traveling east on 6th Way shall stop before entering the
intersection with Sheridan Road.

Dated at Somers, Wisconsin, this _____ day of ______________, 2019.

VILLAGE OF SOMERS

 By:___________________________________
George Stoner, President

 Attest:___________________________________
Timothy Kitzman, Clerk/Treasurer

DAVISON LAW OFFICE, LTD.
 1207 55th Street, Kenosha, Wisconsin 53140

Telephone No. (262) 657-5165   Fax No. (262) 657-5517   E-mail: dmltd@sbcglobal.net

042



 
 

 
 

 
 

VILLAGE OF SOMERS 
VILLAGE BOARD 

MEETING ITEM MEMORANDUM  
              
MEETING DATE:  November 12th, 2019  
 
TO:    Village President Stoner and Village Trustees 
 
PREPARED BY:  Jason J. Peters, Assistant Administrator  
 
AGENDA ITEM: #11 Administrator’s Report on Pritzker Military Archive 
 

#12 Action on Request for Comprehensive Land Use Plan Amendment  
by Ronald J Birchell, 1276 100th Ave. Kenosha WI 53144; Alvin 
R & Jean R Wilks Revocable Trust, 17629 Durand Ave. Union 
Grove WI 53182; Francesco M & Natalie C Rovella, 1340 100th 
Ave. Kenosha WI 53144; Joseph A & Christina M Funk, 11201 
12th St. Kenosha WI 53144; Yosef Hakimi Family Trust, 
Valentine Hakimi, 650 Laurel Ave., Ste 205, Highland Park IL 
60035 (Owners); Mary Parthe, Berteau Honore LLC, 104 S. 
Michigan Ave., No. 500, Chicago, IL 60603 (Agent), request an 
amendment to the land use plan map for the Village of Somers 
(Map 80) as adopted in the Multi-Jurisdictional Comprehensive 
Plan for Kenosha County: 2035 from "Business/Industrial Park", 
“Secondary Environmental Corridor” and “Other Conservancy 
Land to be Preserved” to "Business/Industrial Park", “Park and 
Recreational”, “Secondary Environmental Corridor” and “Other 
Conservancy Land to be Preserved” on Tax Parcel #s 82-4-222-
172-0202, 82-4-222-172-0401, 82-4-222-172-0402, 82-4-222-181-
0100, 82-4-222-181-0200, 82-4-222-181-0300, 82-4-222-181-
0400, 82-4-222-182-0201, 82-4-222-182-0202, located in the NW 
1/4 of Section 17 and the NE & NW ¼ of Section 18, T2N, R22E, 
Village of Somers. 

    
#13 Action on Request for Rezoning by Ronald J Birchell, 1276 100th 

Ave Kenosha WI 53144; Alvin R & Jean R Wilks Revocable 
Trust, 17629 Durand Ave Union Grove WI 53182; Francesco M & 
Natalie C Rovella, 1340 100th Ave Kenosha WI 53144; Joseph A 
& Christina M Funk, 11201 12th St Kenosha WI 53144; Yosef 
Hakimi Family Trust, Valentine Hakimi, 650 Laurel Ave., Ste 205, 
Highland Park IL 60035 (Owners); Mary Parthe, Berteau Honore 
LLC, 104 S. Michigan Ave., No. 500, Chicago, IL 60603 (Agent), 
request a rezoning from A-1 Agricultural Preservation Dist., A-2 



 
 

 
 

General Agricultural Dist. and C-1 Lowland Resource 
Conservancy Dist. to PR-1 Park-Recreational Dist., I-1 
Institutional Dist. and C-1 Lowland Resource Conservancy Dist. 
on Tax Parcel #s 82-4-222-172-0202, 82-4-222-172-0401, 82-4-
222-172-0402, 82-4-222-181-0100, 82-4-222-181-0200, 82-4-222-
181-0300, 82-4-222-181-0400, 82-4-222-182-0201, 82-4-222-182-
0202, located in the NW 1/4 of Section 17 and the NE & NW ¼ of 
Section 18, T2N, R22E, Village of Somers. 

 
#14 Action on Request by Ronald J Birchell, 1276 100th Ave Kenosha 

WI 53144; Alvin R & Jean R Wilks Revocable Trust, 17629 
Durand Ave Union Grove WI 53182; Francesco M & Natalie C 
Rovella, 1340 100th Ave Kenosha WI 53144; Joseph A & 
Christina M Funk, 11201 12th St Kenosha WI 53144; Yosef 
Hakimi Family Trust, Valentine Hakimi, 650 Laurel Ave., Ste 205, 
Highland Park IL 60035 (Owners); Mary Parthe, Berteau Honore 
LLC, 104 S. Michigan Ave., No. 500, Chicago, IL 60603 (Agent), 
for site plan on Tax Parcel #s 82-4-222-172-0202, 82-4-222-172-
0401, 82-4-222-172-0402, 82-4-222-181-0100, 82-4-222-181-
0200, 82-4-222-181-0300, 82-4-222-181-0400, 82-4-222-182-
0201, 82-4-222-182-0202, located in the NW 1/4 of Section 17 and 
the NE & NW ¼ of Section 18, T2N, R22E, Village of Somers.    

              
 
BACKGROUND:  
 

In 2018, Administration began working with Tawani Enterprises aka Berteau Honore 
LLC (herein collectedly referred to as the Developer) on the possibility of bringing a 
project to the Village of Somers.  The proposed project is to be an extension of the 
Pritzker Military Museum and Library (http://www.pritzkermilitary.org/). The project as 
originally submitted requested approvals for the military museum, archival storage 
spaces, outdoor clay target ranges, an indoor firearms training range and publicly 
accessible recreational paths.  In late July, the Developer formally submitted their 
applications for the comprehensive plan amendment, rezoning, a conditional use permit, 
and site plan approval.  The proposed project is located along CTH E, 100th Avenue, and 
the East I94 frontage road.  The total acres involved are 288.   105 of these acres are 
unbuildable due to wetlands, floodplain issues, setbacks, right or ways issues and an 
ANR pipeline easement that divides the north/south project area.  This project will be 
located in TID #6.   
 
The components of the project now include:  
 

• Pritzker Military Archives;  
 

• Firearms Education and Training Center;  
 

• Cold War Memorial;  
 

• Commercial Archives;  
 

http://www.pritzkermilitary.org/


 
 

 
 

• and Community Green Space.  
 
The project no longer includes the outdoor shooting clays course.  The Developer has 
updated their site plan and applications to reference this fact.  Their application for the 
conditional use permit has been removed from the materials as presented to the Plan 
Commission.   Again, this element has been removed, as the Developer is no longer 
seeking approval of the outdoor shooting clays course.  The Developer is willing to 
memorialize in the Developer’s Agreement that they will not request outdoor shooting 
range on this property in the future and you will note this is a part of the proposed 
motion.   
 

PRIOR ACTION TAKEN:  
 

The public hearing for the development was held on September 16th.  The main issue of 
contention at this meeting was the conditional use permit for the proposed outdoor 
shootings clays course.  The overwhelming majority of the public testimony was against 
the granting of the conditional use permit.  The Plan Commission voted (7-0) to 
recommend the following:  
 

• Approval of the Requested Comprehensive Plan change from 
"Business/Industrial Park", “Secondary Environmental Corridor” and 
“Other Conservancy Land to be Preserved” to "Business/Industrial Park", 
“Park and Recreational”, “Secondary Environmental Corridor” and 
“Other Conservancy Land to be Preserved”;  
 

• Approval of the Requested Rezoning from A-1 Agricultural Preservation 
Dist., A-2 General Agricultural Dist. and C-1 Lowland Resource 
Conservancy Dist. to PR-1 Park-Recreational Dist., I-1 Institutional Dist. 
and C-1 Lowland Resource Conservancy Dist; and  

 
• Approval of the Site Plan.  

 
The Plan Commission tabled the issue of the conditional use permit for the outdoor 
shooting clays course. On September 17th, the Village received an email from the 
Developer stating that they were going to remove outdoor shooting clays course from the 
proposed development.  They also stated they were willing to hold a public information 
meeting regarding the remaining portions of the project.  On October 24th, the Developer 
held an informational meeting for the public at Maplecrest Country Club.  In an effort to 
be transparent, the Developer also established a website where individuals can go to learn 
more about the project (https://www.pritzkermilitaryarchives.com/) and submit questions 
via email (info@pritzkermilitaryarchives.com).    
 
On November 1st, Administration added a news article item to our website to inform the 
public that this matter would be reviewed at our November 5th Work Session.  The link 
included the packet provided to the Board.   
http://www.somers.org/?q=node/1114#.XcRx9DNKiUk  
 
The Board reviewed the updated site plan and discussed this matter at our November 5th 
Work Session.  Administration and legal counsel met with the Developer on November 

https://www.pritzkermilitaryarchives.com/
mailto:info@pritzkermilitaryarchives.com
http://www.somers.org/?q=node/1114#.XcRx9DNKiUk


 
 

 
 

6th to continue negotiations on a Developer’s Agreement.  The major deal points are 
included in the proposed motion.   

 
SUGGESTED ACTION/ACTION REQUESTED/COMMENTS:  
 

In the event that the Village Board wishes for this project to move forward, a suggested 
motion to approve would be as follows:   
 

“Motion to approve items 12, 13, and 14 request by Ronald J Birchell, 1276 
100th Ave. Kenosha WI 53144; Alvin R & Jean R Wilks Revocable Trust, 17629 
Durand Ave. Union Grove WI 53182; Francesco M & Natalie C Rovella, 1340 
100th Ave. Kenosha WI 53144; Joseph A & Christina M Funk, 11201 12th St. 
Kenosha WI 53144; Yosef Hakimi Family Trust, Valentine Hakimi, 650 Laurel 
Ave., Ste 205, Highland Park IL 60035 (Owners); Mary Parthe, Berteau Honore 
LLC, 104 S. Michigan Ave., No. 500, Chicago, IL 60603 (Agent), for the 
following;  amendment to the land use plan map for the Village of Somers (Map 
80) as adopted in the Multi-Jurisdictional Comprehensive Plan for Kenosha 
County: 2035 from "Business/Industrial Park", “Secondary Environmental 
Corridor” and “Other Conservancy Land to be Preserved” to 
"Business/Industrial Park", “Park and Recreational”, “Secondary Environmental 
Corridor” and “Other Conservancy Land to be Preserved”; for rezoning from A-
1 Agricultural Preservation Dist., A-2 General Agricultural Dist. and C-1 
Lowland Resource Conservancy Dist. to PR-1 Park-Recreational Dist., I-1 
Institutional Dist. and C-1 Lowland Resource Conservancy Dist.; and for 
approval of for site plan on Tax Parcel #s 82-4-222-172-0202, 82-4-222-172-
0401, 82-4-222-172-0402, 82-4-222-181-0100, 82-4-222-181-0200, 82-4-222-
181-0300, 82-4-222-181-0400, 82-4-222-182-0201, 82-4-222-182-0202, located 
in the NW 1/4 of Section 17 and the NE & NW ¼ of Section 18, T2N, R22E, 
Village of Somers, subject to the following:  
 

1. Conditional approval of a comprehensive plan amendment which 
would be subject to the execution of a Development Agreement 
(see #3, below) with the understanding that such approval would 
be revoked in the event that the terms and conditions of the 
Development Agreement were not completed.  

 
2. Conditional approval of rezoning which would be subject to the 

execution of a Development Agreement (see #3, below) with the 
understanding that such approval would be revoked in the event 
that the terms and conditions of the Development Agreement were 
not completed.  

 
3. Execution of a Development Agreement which would include the 

following provisions: 
 

a. Developer responsibility to pay the full costs for the design 
and construction of a sanitary sewer system and municipal 
water system.  

  



 
 

 
 

b. Construction of all buildings shall be subject to the 
Development Agreement and will require final design 
review by Village staff for compliance with photometrics, 
landscaping, building design standards, and similar 
requirements, as prescribed by Village ordinance. 

 
c. The Developer shall be financially responsible for all 

internal and external roads or traffic improvements 
required by Village ordinance or Kenosha County.  

  
d. A permanent prohibition on outdoor shooting 

ranges/sporting clays ranges located on any portion of the 
property. 

 
e. A recapture provision allowing the Developer to recover a 

pro-rata portion of the costs paid by the Developer for the 
extension of municipal sanitary sewer and/or municipal 
water for benefitted properties not owned by the Developer 
and identified by the Village Engineer.  Such recapture 
shall include a repayment of all special assessments for 
such public improvements against benefitted properties to 
the Developer and, in the event that the Developer is not 
fully reimbursed for benefitted properties other than those 
owned by the Developer, then on September 1, 2032, the 
Developer shall be reimbursed for the remaining funds to 
which Developer is entitled and any remaining special 
assessments will be reassigned to the Village.  

  
f. The Developer shall pay all normal and customary building 

fees and make a voluntary payment in lieu of impact fees. 
 

g. Subject to compliance with final recommendations from the 
Kenosha County Department of Zoning and Development 
(the Village contract zoning administrators) and 
recommendations from the Village Engineer. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

a. Updated Site Plan 
 

b. Plan Commission Minutes from September 16th, 2019 
 

c. Updated Planning Memo from Kenosha County with CUP Removed 
 
d. October 24th Presentation Materials (states they need airport approval, airport 

approval attached)  
 
e. Air Port Approval  
 
f. Correction Statement from Developer 
 
g. Fact Sheet from Developer 
 
h. Questions & Answers from October 24th Meeting  
 
i. Developer Communication Plan  
 
j. Petition in Support of Approval 
 
k. Letters in Support of Approval provided by Developer 
 
l. Sewer Concept 
 
m. Water Concept 
 
n. Map of TID 6 
 
o. Estimate of Taxes 

 
p. TID 6 Somers Assumptions for Development 
 
q. Increment Projections from Ehlers & Associates for the Project  
 
r. TID 6 Fiscal Analysis – Pritzker Military Archives 

 
s. Preliminary Project Schedule 

 
 
 



r 

1----iiilW--

- .--._ -- -·
I 

I ·,

,I, ( 
I 

� l 

'� 

� .
, 

'

l
-'' 

. FRONTAGE ,RD / 120lH AVE
�

'. ., 
(1.95 A,CREs�co.1- -� AC·RES 

,..,.TRAN SGANAQJ\ c=:4.s. EASE_ 'ENT]) ◄I
I I . � 

. L, -· - - i; _-- ,:,_ - - - G
- - ,' ' �;¼-

� - - ·�· --- G-- ---= :;�+--i-� 
' ' ... 
I I 
. . 

I I 

..

FL·OOD'PLAIN & WETLAND \ j 
· ,(33.46 ACRES} � 

-

I I . ' ' 

EXISTJ 6,6 FT. R.O.W. ,1·.13 
. ACRES ON PMML SITE) 

PMA____._ 

1 

I '· TRANSCANADA G,AS MAIN IN 
',,_ EASEMENT (AREA= 7.:91 ACRES) 
\

' 

) 

ISOLATED WETLAND 
(0.08 ACRE.S) 

WETLAND (13.73 ACRES) 

COLD WAR MEMORIAL ·_ .. 

FU'TURE 120 PT R .. O.W. f'\. ·4 
ACRES ON PMML SITE) 

I ' 
I I . -- . �� . . ·\. 

' �'" . \\ 
1 .. - .. ·, ., . " ·�•
I uill lj,l!I .J � 

\
-,

� 1. . "'"' ,j,,, t 

' 
1111' N�1 1,-.r:.,.1 

I . .. ... , . - .
;·I ---. _/ 

1 
\1111111i11llk1'1,Ufl!.111■,',UH(j ••■-■• fl ,11nf 1 

--- - - . 
. ' 

I I 
� i �'� . ,...,..._FLOODPLAIN (J:2.05 ACRES) 

' ' 

I I
' 

�- . � . - � . 
i 1 ,,

- ✓
FJREARMS, EDU �f� -·· -

I & TRAINING CENT .. _ 

FRONJAGE RD J 120TH AVE USE 
(0.69 ACRES [0.10 AC.RES F·oR DRIVEWAYS + 
0.59 ACR_ES FOR LANDSCAPE].) 

I . . 
, I -�

.' -
I l 

. UTILITY EASEMEN'T ----.-1 
(12.10 ACRES) . I 

- ' .2:.-: -"'.·::__..:, __ -:::::. --·:.::---·,--· -·- · . ..:.. -:= _ _:,.::_.:;::-: .. ' -=-· '---::::"� . .!....�.,;_,· �=·' - J_�_. '-'., ____ .. --· '--=--
'--

-=-
.

. -=-.

_,;

,
'· �-� �

,--

• .

�..::::.;...;;;....;.;;:-_..,;;;,.,;;:...---:::7+ - i,,h:n: 

� - - ___, - - - - - � - - - - - - - - - - -- - - - _._ 

� 

i 

/

'
I 

-- - - __ , 

/ 

' ' 

COMMERCIAL ARCHIVES



 

1 | P a g e  

These minutes are not official until approved by the Plan Commission.  
Submitted by Ann Brumback, Administrative Assistant 

 

 
 

  
 
Plan Commission Minutes 
September 16, 2019 
 
Present:  Chairman George Stoner, Commissioners, Ron Grimes, Don Boxx, Robin Wamboldt, and Bob Lee, 
Paul Aiello, and Scott Fredrick.    
 
Also Present, William Morris, Administrator, Jason Peters, Assistant Administrator, Jeffrey Davison, Village 
Attorney, Andy Buhler and Luke Godshall, Village Planners, Doug Snyder, Village Engineer, Gregg Sinnen, 
Karl Ostby, Jackie Nelson, Joe Smith, Trustees, Carson Wilkinson, Fire Chief, and Ann Brumback, 
Administrative Assistant. 

 
1. Call to order:  Chairman Stoner called the meeting to order at 5:37 pm, thanked everyone for coming and 

explained how the meeting would be conducted. Chairman Stoner also asked Attorney Davison to explain 
confidentially and how they go hand and hand with developers and municipalities. 

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance:  Chairman Stoner, introduced Trustee Nelson Veterans of Somers to lead the 

Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
3. Approve minutes of 08-12-19 meeting: Commissioner Boxx made the motion to approve, and 

was seconded by Commissioner Grimes.  Motion passed. 
 
4. Correspondence:  Letters that were received from residents were received and filed, these 

letters were emailed to the Plan Commissioners and a printed copy provided for them tonight. 
 
5.  Citizen Comments:  None – All comments were made for items 6, 7, 8, and 9 at the same time. 
 
6. Public hearing & action on request for Comprehensive Land Use Plan Amendment: Ronald J 

Birchell, 1276 100th Ave. Kenosha WI 53144; Alvin R & Jean R Wilks Revocable Trust, 17629 
Durand Ave. Union Grove WI 53182; Francesco M & Natalie C Rovella, 1340 100th Ave. Kenosha 
WI 53144; Joseph A & Christina M Funk, 11201 12th St. Kenosha WI 53144; Yosef Hakimi Family 
Trust, Valentine Hakimi, 650 Laurel Ave., Ste 205, Highland Park IL 60035 (Owners); Mary 
Parthe, Berteau Honore LLC, 104 S. Michigan Ave., No. 500, Chicago, IL 60603 (Agent), request 
an amendment to the land use plan map for the Village of Somers (Map 80) as adopted in the Multi-
Jurisdictional Comprehensive Plan for Kenosha County: 2035 from "Business/Industrial Park", 
“Secondary Environmental Corridor” and “Other Conservancy Land to be Preserved” to 
"Business/Industrial Park", “Park and Recreational”, “Secondary Environmental Corridor” and 
“Other Conservancy Land to be Preserved” on Tax Parcel #s 82-4-222-172-0202, 82-4-222-172-
0401, 82-4-222-172-0402, 82-4-222-181-0100, 82-4-222-181-0200, 82-4-222-181-0300, 82-4-222-181-
0400, 82-4-222-182-0201, 82-4-222-182-0202, located in the NW 1/4 of Section 17 and the NE & NW 
¼ of Section 18, T2N, R22E, Village of Somers. 

 
Chairman Stoner read the request for the Public Hearing and Action into the meeting and opened the 
Public Hearing for items 6, 7, 8, and 9 with approval from everyone at the meeting. 
 
The following people spoke: 



 

2 | P a g e  

These minutes are not official until approved by the Plan Commission.  
Submitted by Ann Brumback, Administrative Assistant 

 

Michael Boozer-9725 12th Street, Mark Leslie, Mike Willkomm-991 120th Ave, Major General James 
Mukogama-Glenview IL, Fred Galati, Sr.-Milwaukee, WI,  Rhonda Young-Pembroke, GA, Michael 
Stensland-Milwaukee, WI,  Allen Lynch-Gurnee, IL, Dave Riley-3446 16th PL, Raymond Limvach-
Arlington Heights, IL, Linda Seymour-9820-15th St., Laura Svatek-9825 14th Pl, Janice Hysell-11820 12th 
St., Ben Harbach-900 100th Ave., Stephanie Funk-11201 12th St., Keith Dunham-9725 14th St., Olga 
Garcia-9918 12th St., Richard Lewis-1262 98th Ave., Steve Seymout-9820 15th St., Jeff Jachowicz-9710 
15th St., Gretta Lewis-1262 98th Ave., Joe Lampada-9825 15th St., Mary Castle-9900 15th St., Michael 
Galster-1470 97th Ave., Scott Erskine-1450 97th Ave., Denise Schulz-1414 97th Ave., James Moore-1414 
97th Ave., Lynette Lessard-1270 98th Ave., Kathy Harmeyer-9711 14th St., Keith Konkle-1435 98th Ave., 
Tom Grubb-9750 14th St., Ruth Schmidt-1301 98th Ave., Michael DeLuca-1346 97th Ave., Lisa Boozer-
9725 12th St., Tim Santeli-9721 14th St., Marilyn Dunham- 9725 14th St., Bernard Turo-1306 95th Ave.,  
Kent Castle-9900 15th St., Nora Bigly-9925 15th St., Christopher Bigley-9925 15th St., Tom Vogel-
970015th St., Diane Madden-1254 98th Ave., Brian Stavlo-1455 98th Ave., Kathleen Vaughn-9707 12th Pl., 
Brian Cater-1425 98th Ave., Chris Denman-9407 12th St., John Wiersum-1456 94th Ave., Steve Sabby- 
1329 97th Ave., Kathi Sabby-1329 97th Ave., Robert Rauth-9800 14th St., Jamie Rauth-9800 14th St., 
Joseph Gallo-1235 97th Ave, Rick Schim-140 25th Ave, Wayne Harkar-3540, Kathleen Gloff-2031 30th 
Ave., Jeffrey Weidner-2811 10th Pl., Lynda Pfeiffer-1345 97th Ave., Jason fisher-982014th Pl., Mike 
Skalitzky-1415 97th Ave., Randahl Smits-9908 14th St., Daniel Leiting-9800 14th Pl., Beth Boettcher-9918 
14th St., Dave Boettcher-9918 14th St., Peggy Gallo-1235 97th Ave., Judith Lee-9406 14th St., David Bouer-
1431 95th Ave., Gregg Sinnen-3190 100th Ave., Lou Ann Daniels-1497. 
 
Chairman Stoner asked if there was anyone else wishing to speak three (3) times before he closed the 
Public Hearings on item 6. 
 

7. Public hearing & action on request for Rezoning: Ronald J Birchell, 1276 100th Ave Kenosha WI 
53144; Alvin R & Jean R Wilks Revocable Trust, 17629 Durand Ave Union Grove WI 53182; 
Francesco M & Natalie C Rovella, 1340 100th Ave Kenosha WI 53144; Joseph A & Christina M 
Funk, 11201 12th St Kenosha WI 53144; Yosef Hakimi Family Trust, Valentine Hakimi, 650 Laurel 
Ave., Ste 205, Highland Park IL 60035 (Owners); Mary Parthe, Berteau Honore LLC, 104 S. 
Michigan Ave., No. 500, Chicago, IL 60603 (Agent), request a rezoning from A-1 Agricultural 
Preservation Dist., A-2 General Agricultural Dist. and C-1 Lowland Resource Conservancy Dist. to 
PR-1 Park-Recreational Dist., I-1 Institutional Dist. and C-1 Lowland Resource Conservancy Dist. 
on Tax Parcel #s 82-4-222-172-0202, 82-4-222-172-0401, 82-4-222-172-0402, 82-4-222-181-0100, 82-
4-222-181-0200, 82-4-222-181-0300, 82-4-222-181-0400, 82-4-222-182-0201, 82-4-222-182-0202, 
located in the NW 1/4 of Section 17 and the NE & NW ¼ of Section 18, T2N, R22E, Village of 
Somers. 

 
 Chairman Stoner read the request for the Public Hearing and action for the Rezoning, and asked if anyone 

wanted to speak three (3) times then closed the Public Hearing. 
  
8. Public hearing & action on request for Conditional Use Permit: Ronald J Birchell, 1276 100th Ave 

Kenosha WI 53144; Alvin R & Jean R Wilks Revocable Trust, 17629 Durand Ave Union Grove WI 
53182; Francesco M & Natalie C Rovella, 1340 100th Ave Kenosha WI 53144; Joseph A & Christina 
M Funk, 11201 12th St Kenosha WI 53144; Yosef Hakimi Family Trust, Valentine Hakimi, 650 
Laurel Ave., Ste 205, Highland Park IL 60035 (Owners); Mary Parthe, Berteau Honore LLC, 104 
S. Michigan Ave., No. 500, Chicago, IL 60603 (Agent), request a Conditional Use Permit for outdoor 
firearm, skeet and trap shooting ranges in the PR-1 Park-Recreational Dist. on Tax Parcel #s 82-4-
222-172-0202, 82-4-222-172-0401, 82-4-222-172-0402, 82-4-222-181-0100, 82-4-222-181-0200, 82-4-



 

3 | P a g e  

These minutes are not official until approved by the Plan Commission.  
Submitted by Ann Brumback, Administrative Assistant 

 

222-181-0300, 82-4-222-181-0400, 82-4-222-182-0201, 82-4-222-182-0202, located in the NW 1/4 of 
Section 17 and the NE & NW ¼ of Section 18, T2N, R22E, Village of Somers. 

 
 Chairman Stoner then asked the Commissioners and they had a problem waving the reading of this item.   

Commissioner Lee made the motion to wave the reading and was seconded by Commissioner Grimes. 
 Chairman Stoner then asked the representatives for the Pritzker Museum development to give their 

presentation. 
 
 Dr. Rob Havers, introduced himself, spoke briefly regarding the archive military preservation and 

protection of the Natural Resources and would be working closely with the Wisconsin DNR for protection 
of the wetlands and streams running through the property. Dr. Havers then introduce everyone to a brief 
presentation from Colonel Jennifer Pritzker on a video.  Colonel Pritzker spoke about the need to expand 
the current location to preserve history and education for the future.  The development will be done in 
three phases, with the first two starting with the archival and education and training centers. 

 
 Chris Meter, a Veteran of the United States Marine Corps, now working at the Pritzker Military Museum 

and Library, thanking the Village for consideration of the project.  He also spoke briefly of Mr. Leon 
Dreger, a World War II veteran who served on our Plan Commission.  Mr. Meter then went on to state the 
third phase of the project is to create two additional facilities including a “Firearms Education and Training 
Center” and the first World Class Military themed Clay Target course.  The first of these to centers would 
be a secure indoor firearms education and training center, which they hope would provide a facility 
capable of meeting the specialized training needs of first responders as well as local military, reserve and 
Nation Guard units.  The second center would be used for hosting sports, competitions, youth education 
and charity events. 

 
 Chairman Stoner, then called for a motion from the Commissioners.  Commissioner Boxx recommended 

approval, Commissioner Aiello seconded the motion.  This was followed by questions from the 
Commissioners including, noise testing, what type of guns, barriers, fencing, landscaping, lighting.  Dr. 
Higgins stated sound testing is still be testing on an empty site was taken and was barely audible and they 
would continue testing to make sure it was according to Kenosha County Codes.  It was stated that no rifle 
or pistols or mussel loaders could be used outside clay target course and all ammunition must be purchased 
on site.  Also barriers would be within the site as well as around the site. Fencing, extensive trees, shrubs 
and landscaping would be maintained.  Walking/bike paths open to public. 

 
 Commissioner Box amended his motion to table the Conditional Use Permit (item #8) until more 

information could be obtained regarding the questions asked.  Commissioner Aiello seconded the 
amendment.  Motion passed 7-0. 

 
 Chairman Stoner then called for a motion to approve the Comprehensive Plan Amendment (item #6) and 

the Rezone (item #7) and Site Plan (item #9).  Attorney Davison made it clear to the Commissioners and 
the audience that Items 6, 7 and 9 could not happen without the Conditional Use Permit.  The motion 
passed 7-0. 

 
    9. Ronald J Birchell, 1276 100th Ave Kenosha WI 53144; Alvin R & Jean R Wilks Revocable Trust,  

17629 Durand Ave Union Grove WI 53182; Francesco M & Natalie C Rovella, 1340 100th Ave 
Kenosha WI 53144; Joseph A & Christina M Funk, 11201 12th St Kenosha WI 53144; Yosef Hakimi 
Family Trust, Valentine Hakimi, 650 Laurel Ave., Ste 205, Highland Park IL 60035 (Owners); Mary 
Parthe, Berteau Honore LLC, 104 S. Michigan Ave., No. 500, Chicago, IL 60603 (Agent),  for site 
plan and exterior fenestration approval of a proposed military museum and outdoor firearm, skeet 



 

4 | P a g e  

These minutes are not official until approved by the Plan Commission.  
Submitted by Ann Brumback, Administrative Assistant 

 

and trap shooting ranges to be constructed on Tax Parcel #s 82-4-222-172-0202, 82-4-222-172-0401, 
82-4-222-172-0402, 82-4-222-181-0100, 82-4-222-181-0200, 82-4-222-181-0300, 82-4-222-181-0400, 
82-4-222-182-0201, 82-4-222-182-0202, located in the NW 1/4 of Section 17 and the NE & NW ¼ of 
Section 18, T2N, R22E, Village of Somers. 

 
10. Adjourn:  Commissioner Boxx made the motion to adjourn, Commissioner Aiello seconded the motion. 
 Motion passed 7-0.  The meeting adjourned at 10:00 pm. 
 



















































































































WELCOME

WELCOME



Welcome Mary Parthé & 
Pastor Rev. Kathleen Gloff

Thank you, we appreciate the additional opportunity to meet 
with you and we have been listening!  Our goal is to present 
the project facts and information, in a safe, interactive, and 

productive environment.



Our Presenters
Mary Parthe, Chief of Staff, TAWANI Enterprises
Michelle Nakfoor, General Counsel, TAWANI Enterprises
Greg Brown, Project Manager, TAWANI Enterprises
Ed Santos, Founder, Tactical Services Group, LLC
Dr. Rob Havers, President and CEO, Pritzker Military Museum & Library
Shari Koehler, Chief Financial Officer, TAWANI Enterprises

Our Staff
Kimberlee Carr, Director of Property Management, TAWANI Property Management
Nathan Crisan, Construction Manager, TAWANI Property Development
Nicole Kleidon, Legal & Risk Operations Manager, TAWANI Enterprises
Leslie Roshto, Project Manager, TAWANI Enterprises
Theadora Gerber, Director of Marketing and Communications, TAWANI Enterprises
Claudia Gutierrez, Public Relations Associate, TAWANI Enterprises
Megan Williams, Director of External Affairs, Pritzker Military Museum & Library
Raj Kaler, Financial Analyst, TAWANI Enterprises
Chris Meter, Adjutant, Operations Specialist, Pritzker Military Museum & Library
Dustin DePue, Director of Collections Management, Pritzker Military Museum & Library



Meeting Agenda
•Our presentation will last approximately 20 minutes. We will provide project facts, an 

overview of the project including visuals, and discuss community benefits.

• Immediately following the presentation, we will have a Q&A session for 30 minutes. 
Please raise your hand if you have a question and we will attempt to answer all within that 
timeframe. We appreciate the opportunity to hear from you directly.

•We will keep the room open for 30 minutes after the Q&A for interaction between 
community members and our team, and answer questions from the community.

•We will post today’s presentation and a fact sheet online for your review after this 
meeting. 

•We will conclude and exit by 7:30pm.



CLAY TARGET RANGE
Clay target range proposal has been removed 

from project.
Conditional use permit is no longer needed; will 

be memorialized in the Developer’s Agreement.

Project 
Facts

FENCING
We will no longer need the proposed 
fencing along the perimeter. The 
proposed fencing will only be around 
areas not accessible to the public.

DEVELOPMENT RESTRICTIONS
Floodplain / Wetlands = 80 acres
ANR Pipeline Easement = 8 acres
Setbacks / Utility Easements = 17 acres
TOTAL = 105 unbuildable acres

= 36% of the total land area that is not 
suitable for building.

REMAINING PROJECT COMPONENTS:

Tax 
Facts

Land 
Facts

Property will pay tax on all 288 acres 
upon land acquisition.

Post-construction, we will apply for 10 
acres of NFP tax exemption for the 
Pritzker Military Archives only.

Entire project will be funded by 
private funds through a 501c3.

PRITZKER MILITARY ARCHIVES
COMMERCIAL ARCHIVES
COLD WAR MEMORIAL
COMMUNITY GREEN SPACE
FIREARMS EDUCATION & TRAINING CENTER (FETC)

Located underground; fully enclosed.
Air filtration will exceed Environmental Protection Agency 

(EPA) standard guidelines.
1 mile from Maple Ridge; 1.2 miles from Busy Bee Day Care 

& Somers Community United Church of Christ.



2016
Paris Property 
• Negotiated contract 

for purchase of land 
in Paris

2017
Due Diligence
• Architecture and 

environmental 
reviews

• Subject to
Inter-Governmental
Agreement between
Somers and Paris
signed in late 2017

2018
• Met with Somers, Paris 

and Kenosha government representatives

• Only one Paris representative was critical 
of the project

• At the close of the meeting, approached by 
Somers representatives suggesting 
property east of I-94 in Somers for project

• Withdrew from Paris
• Identified parcels of land in Somers
• Engaged in confidential negotiations with 

landowners for land purchase which is 
industry standard process

2019
• Land under contract

• Due diligence process begins

• Signed Pre-Development 
Agreement with Somers

• Meetings with Somers regarding 
Developer’s Agreement including 
infrastructure
• All discussions are public record
• Application submitted in July

Timeline



Approval Process & Moving Forward
Application changes
• Conditional Use Permit for outdoor clay and shooting was WITHDRAWN on September 17, 2019

Seek approvals for Plan Commission recommendations
• Re-zoning property classification to Institutional and Park & Recreational
• Site Plan review and approval
• Amendment to the Comprehensive Plan Map

Governmental application required reviews
• Comprehensive Plan Amendment – Village of Somers
• Re-zoning – Village of Somers
• Wetlands Delineation – WisDNR
• Traffic Impact Analysis – Kenosha County 
• Airport Overlay – Kenosha County
• Somers Fire Department

Outstanding approvals
• Village Board Meeting on November 12, 2019 – approval of Plan Commission recommendations
• Developer’s Agreement – finalizing terms with Village of Somers Administration
• Seek approval of Developer’s Agreement by Village Board of Trustees



Overall Site Plan



Land Use Restrictions
Wetlands/Floodplain = 80 acres



Land Use Restrictions
Right of Way / Easements = 17 acres



Land Use Restrictions
ANR Gas Pipeline = 8 acres



Land Use Restrictions
Total Unbuildable Area = 105 acres



Firearms Education & Training Center 





1. Outside air enters 
the system

2. Outside air mixes with 
recirculated air and all air is 
either heated or cooled to 
desired setpoint

3. Heated/cooled air is supplied to 
the range through radial diffusers

4. Air proceeds down range at 75 ft/min with 
little to no turbulence caring all contaminants 
away from the shooter

5. Air is drawn 
through the 
return duct and 
filtered

6. A portion of the filtered air is 
returned to the range while the 
remaining air is exhausted to the 
exterior of building

Recirculation System



Pritzker Military Archives





Community Benefits

COMMUNITY IMPACT
• Eagle River
• Rogers Park

COMMUNITY IMPACT – FINANCIAL
• Tax Increment District (TID) #6
• Estimated Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Funding
• Water and Sewer



Q&A Guidelines
•When you have a question during the Q&A session, please raise your hand and 
we will do our best to provide an answer. 

•If you want to make a statement about our project as opposed to a question, 
please wait until after the Q&A when we open up the room so that we can all 
interact. You can also send your statement or questions to our email address at 
info@pritzkermilitaryarchives.com

•We’d like everyone to have a chance to ask their question within the time 
available. Please keep your question limited to one minute in length during the 
30-minute Q&A.

mailto:info@pritzkermilitaryarchives.com


NEXT STEPS
Next Village Board Meeting – November 12, 2019







 

CORRECTION STATEMENT FOR INFORMATION PREVIOUSLY PROVIDED TO 
COMMUNITY 

Contrary to what we previously reported, the approval process for the PMA project will not be a two-
step process, but rather completed in one-step. The facts as we know now, are as follows:   

• The Developer’s Agreement will not be finalized before the 11.12.19 Village Board meeting 
approving the PMA project. 

• Following the public meeting on 9.16.19 , the Village had informed the PMA team that the 
project approval with the Village Board was a two-step process. The first step would be getting 
approval from the Board at the 11.12.19 meeting for the project. The second step would 
be presenting the proposed Developer’s Agreement execution copy at a Village Board Meeting 
scheduled for some time thereafter. 

• However, on 10.28.19 the Village attorney, Jeff Davidson, stated the second step is no longer 
necessary. In order to ensure that the outdoor clays course will not be on the site, the Village 
will present the Board with a motion to include, among other items, that the Developer’s 
Agreement will specifically state there will be no outdoor sporting clays on the site.  

 
Agents of the Village previously informed us that Tax Increment District (TID) #6 was drawn to include 
only the land that would be part of our project and that we would be the only landowners in TID #6. 
However, on 10.28.19, in a conversation with the Village Attorney and Administration, the PMA Team 
was told for the first time that the information previously given to us was not accurate. There are, in 
fact, parcels of land in TID #6 that will not be part of our project or owned by us. Village Administration 
has informed us that parcels of land to the South of our project are also part of TID #6.  
 



PROJECT UPDATES
Clay target range proposal has been removed from the project.
No outdoor firearm activity anywhere on the property.
We are no longer asking for a conditional use permit to build the outdoor clays course, we will 
memorialize this commitment not to build a clays course,  in the Developer’s Agreement.

PROJECT COMPONENT DETAILS
Pritzker Military Archives
These facilities will be located on the highest point of the property, on the Northeast corner. The 
spaces will support the Pritzker Military Museum & Library’s (PMML) mission to preserve the past, 
present, and future of the citizen soldier. 
Firearms Education & Training Center (FETC)
The FETC will be built underground, making it fully enclosed.
Air filtration will exceed Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) standard guidelines.
Located 1 mile from Maple Ridge, 1.2 miles from Busy Bee Day Care and Somers Community 
United Church of Christ.
Cold War Memorial
Dedicated to those who have served from 1945-1991 and will be a place to reflect and honor those 
who have sacrificed. 
Commercial Archives
A high-tech archival facility and will adhere to best practices in conservation. We plan to lease to 
other organizations and individuals in need of this type of space.
Community Green Space
Dedicated public access to walking and bike paths and picnicking areas.
We no longer need original proposed fencing along perimeter - only around areas not accessible to 
public.

LAND USE
Property will pay tax on all 288 acres upon land acquisition.
Post construction, we will apply for 10 acres of NFP tax exemption for the Pritzker Military Archives 
only. 
Entire project funded by private funds through a 501c3.
Restrictions to build:

Floodplain / Wetlands = 80 acres
ANR Pipeline Easement = 8 acres
Setbacks / Utility Easements = 17 acres
Frontage Road / Distance = <2000 feet

ENVIRONMENTALLY CONSCIENTIOUS
Wetlands will remain undisturbed.
Buildings will be energy efficient and utilize solar panels and rainwater collection/re-use.
Site will preserve as much green space as possible; less than 7% of the entire site for the buildings. 

https://pritzkermilitaryarchives.com


 

Question & Answer session during Community Update Meeting on October 24, 2019 

(Please excuse name misspellings) 

1.      Keith Dunnam – What is all the land going to be used for where the clays course was going to be? 

a.      We don’t have a proposed project at this time that will replace it; in terms of what we can do, there many 

restrictions due to floodplain/pipeline, so we don’t have any plans at this time, might open up for more 

public waling/biking, but nothing proposed at this time. 

2.      Ken Castle – With the expected revenue generated from the site, does it cover the operational tax for 

years to come? If not, where will the funding come from in 20-30 years? 

a.      We will have revenue from the Firearm Education and Training Center (FETC), events on the site, and 

we’re still looking for revenue via outdoor clays course, outside of Somers. The entire project will be 

privately funded; and has always been important to Colonel Pritzker there is a financial source in order to 

sustain. 

3.      Michael DeLuca – Explain more about TID. Are any local, state, municipal funds being allocated towards 

this? 

a.      TID is compiled of funds contributed thought only our parcels. We would be the only land owners 

contribute to it. We are funding the sewer and water, as we mentioned. No other land owners will be 

contributing to it.  

4.      What type of outdoor events are you expecting? 

a.      Still thinking about what that might encompass. Parade grounds; military anniversaries; Cold War 

Memorial surrounding. Looking to do events where the community could be a part it, and also in line with 

our mission. 

5.      Jenna Lewis – FETC – is this strictly public, do they have to have applications, are the firearms used in 

there, are firearms contained in the facility, whoever is bringing them in and what 10 acres are going to 

be taxed, and what’s on the 10 acres? 

a.      Facility where public is welcomed to come. Multiple classes will be available. Multiple groups will be able 

to benefit; families, boy scouts, grandfathers/grandson, facility open to the public. It is more than just a 

facility for military or law enforcement. People can bring in their own guns and use them inside. The 

federal govt. is very strict on regulations on how to bring in firearms and storage and will follow that. We 

will also have a very robust security process in places; video cameras on shooting activities, around the 

facility; interior and exterior, etc. 

b.      Tax – PMA is only tax exempt. We’re planning to apply for 10 acres of tax exempt status on the PMA 

portion only. 



6.      Joel Peterson – how many positions, how long is it going to be, handgun? 

a.      Backstop can handle 50 bmg round, but never allowed in facility. A .223 caliber max will be allowed. We 

will have a 25-yard range. More for handgun use. 85-90% shooting will be handgun. 2 bays – 15 stalls. 5 

lane bay, and a 10 lane bay. 

7.      No name – operation hours of FETC and no shooting of any kind outside of building? Fencing, around 

storage and museum? Still commercial grade/anti-theft? Concerned with if we’re looking out from Maple 

Ridge, we see that fencing. 

a.      Underground design eliminates noise – but 9am – 7pm we’re looking at for operational hours. 

b.      Fencing – fencing just FETC and commercial archives most likely. The idea is we need privacy with those 

facilities. Previous fencing would most likely not be used around commercial archives, maybe just FETC 

for safety and security. 

8.      Paul – examples, of indoor range in existence now, and where are they located? Will you be selling guns 

and ammunition? 

a.      Yes, many examples of design concept– one being in Casper, Wyoming – 30 yards from an apartment 

complex and 40-50  yards from a shopping mall. Facility is called Wyoming Gun Club https://wyogun.com 

b.      Yes, gun sales taking place on property; quality firearms sold at a fair price 

9.      Tim Kathy – federal air marshal – describe ammo being used – we use lead free ammunition, can you 

describe the restrictions for ammo. 

a.      We will restrict that all rounds fired other than 22 long rifle will have to be fully enclosed full metal jacket 

b.      Frangible ammunition will be allowed to be brought in 

10.   Question about project updates – says clay target has been removed, why doesn’t it say you will 

memorialize this commitment to have no firearms anywhere on the facility. 

a.      Our intentions are to state that, we can fine tune it; that is our intention. 

11.   One more question – paid events – mentioned earlier. Lots of space for large events – will that be in the 

area of military demonstrations/reenactments and not using live rounds, but still quite loud. 

a.      We’ve made a conscious decision to not have reenactments on property due to noise considerations. We 

may have living history; such as colonial Williamsburg where you have camp follows, no firearms being 

discharged, possibly churning butter. No firearms will be discharged, but reenactment is not on the cards. 

We’re in the educational field, we want to teach about history. More butter, less battle. 

12.   Mark Romenar- town chairman for town of Somers – there is a range in Somers, it’s at Gateway; lanes 

right against classrooms; happy to give a tour of property in facility. My questions is: why given the 

reception you received, are you back here? Most developers wouldn’t come back, why are you back in 

Somers? 

a.      Why we’re here? We realized this is a special and unique project; and we could all be very proud of. We 

didn’t want the last time we interacted with the Somers community to be our last meeting; we listened, 

https://wyogun.com/
https://wyogun.com/


we wrote down your comments. If we could push the rewind button, we would have met with you first. 

We want to build trust, and we still feel very strongly that this is something this community could be 

proud of. 

13.   Beth Betcher – if this project get approved, how will Pritzker/TEI compensate nearby owners if values go 

down? I’m referring to the Pleasant Run landfill. 

a.      Reduced property values usually tend to go down with outdoor ranges as it pertains to noise and safety. 

We’ve taken that component off the table. We often lose sight of; look what else is coming along. Instead 

of looking at a vacant field; when this project comes to fruition, you’re to going to just have state of the 

art facility; you’ll have walking paths, park like setting, and none of those have correlation with reduced 

property values. We’re bringing sewer and water; those should improve values. What we’re proposing 

makes a beautiful gateway into Somers. 

14.   Bob – There are gun ranges in use at this time; there are no complaints with their use, or noise going 

around them. I conducted an informal survey asking if they receive complaints. Police and sheriff are well 

served by facilities here now. I do have a question about ANR pipeline, is that there now? 

a.      Yes, it’s currently there now and has been there a long time. 

15.   Rebuilding trust is big – a big step towards that is being honest – we way now, no outdoor shooting/clay 

range, but what happens after this, or what happens going forward?  

a.      It’s not our goal to ever get a conditional use permit. The developer’s agreement is a contract between 

developer and Somers. It will include sewer and water. As part of our obligation; we will put in there to 

not have any outdoor shooting, and we’ll put that into our contract. What’s the term? We don’t know, as 

far as we know, it runs with the land, so that’s our commitment. 

16.   Do the residents of Somers get to see the contract? 

a.      We have to get board approval. Then, we have to finalize the developer’s agreement, and yes, once we 

finalized the agreement; the document becomes public 

17.   Mike scalinsci – what are the zoning that will be covered? 

a.      Institutional and parks and recreational. 

b.      Not sure approx. 5 acres of land for FETC. 

c.      Clarified Cold War Memorial isn’t a building. 

d.      TID 6 – you’ve made commitment to bring sewer and water; can you clarify what additional 

infrastructure work you’re requesting from the village? 

                                                                   i.     We don’t have requests at this time from the Village, we’re bringing the sewer and water. We’re hoping to 

collect recapture for whoever builds after. 

                                                                  ii.     Commercial buildings will only be 16-18 ft high. 

                                                                 iii.     Property tax is based on the building values and we are building nice buildings, that will be taxed. 



18.   At time – last questions – MKE business journal said you’re doing a four phase project, can you explain 

that? 

a.      4 phases are the aspects of the buildings or facilities. 

b.      Phases may run concurrently. Phases aren’t separate. 

c.      Everything ultimately will be built in 10 years, ideally. But doesn’t lock us in to that. 

19.   How many people do we plan on employing? 

a.      Certainly, at PMA probably in the range of 10-15; mainly librarians. 

b.      FETC – 15 

c.      Plus grounds crews/maintenance  

d.      Commercial archives – we wouldn’t employ, we plan to partner with a company that already does that. 

 



 
 
 
Pritzker Military Archives Communication Plan 
 
Project Information & Communication 
 
The Pritzker Military Archives team understands the importance of effective and clear 
communication with the Village of Somers and we stand by our commitment to share accurate 
project information. 
  
Website Communication: 
In order to keep trust and transparency a priority with the Somers community, we have 
developed a website to serve as the hub for all project information including videos and images. 
This will be the primary public source to go to for project facts, news, and new developments: 
www.pritzkermilitaryarchives.com 
 
Email Communication: 
We will send email communication to the current Village of Somers email list when a major 
update has been made to the website. Community members can email us via the website form, 
or through info@pritzkermilitaryarchives.com with their information if they would like to be 
added to this list. 
 
Project Updates 
 
As the project continues to develop, details of site plans may change as we work through 
finalizing development and landscaping designs. We will highlight all updates under the “Project 
News & Developments” section of the website. To reiterate, components of the project will not 
change. These include the Pritzker Military Archives, Commercial Archives, Firearms Education 
& Training Center, Cold War Memorial, and Community Green Space. No outdoor clay course 
will be included in the project, nor will any outdoor shooting activities. 
 
Contact Us 
 
We value all input and want to hear from the Community. Any concerns, comments or 
questions about our project can be directed to the two below options. We will respond to all 
inquiries in a timely manner. 
 

• Complete and “send” the form at the bottom of the Pritzker Military Archives website  

• Email: info@pritzkermilitaryarchives.com 
 
 

https://www.pritzkermilitaryarchives.com/
https://www.pritzkermilitaryarchives.com/
mailto:info@pritzkermilitaryarchives.com
mailto:info@pritzkermilitaryarchives.com
mailto:info@pritzkermilitaryarchives.com.
mailto:info@pritzkermilitaryarchives.com.
















































From: Chad Giles
To: InformationPritzkerMilitaryArchives
Subject: Welcome to Somers
Date: Saturday, October 26, 2019 9:33:17 AM

As a lifelong resident of Somers, I’d like to welcome you and thank you for picking our little burg for your
wonderful development.   I, and others I’ve talked to, look forward to seeing your vision completed. 

I also may sign up for one of the safety classes I believe I’ve read about. 

Best of luck in your process and we look forward to having your organization as new neighbors.

Chad Giles
4800 4th st
Kenosha

Sent from my iPhone

mailto:cgiles@tg3electronics.com
mailto:info@pritzkermilitaryarchives.com


!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!! ! !

!

!

!
!

!
!!!

!

!

!

!!!
!

!

!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !!
!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

! ! ! ! ! !! ! ! !!

!

!

! ! !

! ! ! ! !

!

! !!!

!!!!!!!
!!

!

!

! ! !!
!

! !

! ! ! ! !

!

!

!

!!!!!

! ! ! ! ! !

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

! ! ! ! !

!

!!!! !! !

!

! !!!!!!!!!!

!

!

!

»»

»
»

» » » » » »

!!!2 !!!2

!!!2

!!!2

!!!2!!!2!!!2
!!!2

!!!2

!!!2

!!!2

!!!2

!!!2

!!!2

!!!2

!!!2!!!2

!!!2

!!!2
!!!2

!!!2

!!!2

!!!2

!!!2

!!!2

!!!2

!!!2

!!!2

!!!2

!!!2

!!!2

!!!2

!!!2

[Ú

[Ú

[Ú

M
:
\
S
O
M
E
V
\
1
6
1
1
0
4
-
W
a
t
e
r
 
D
i
v
e
r
s
i
o
n
\
G
I
S
\
A
G
P
_
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
W
a
t
e
r
D
i
v
e
r
s
i
o
n
S
t
u
d
y
\
W
a
t
e
r
D
i
v
e
r
s
i
o
n
S
t
u
d
y
.
a
p
r
x
 
 
 
 
 
S
a
v
e
d
:
 
8
/
3
0
/
2
0
1
9
 
1
2
:
4
4
 
P
M
 
 
D
e
s
i
g
n
e
r
:
 
5
6
3
d
k
s

Source(s):  Base data from Kenosha County GIS, 2018.  Sewer by Baxter & Woodman,  and others

0 1,000 2,000500
Feet

CONCEPT PLAN
Village of Somers, WIINITIAL SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM

E Drains to Lake MichiganE

Drains to Mississippi River

August 30, 2019

Rim= 735
Inv= 708

Rim= 718
Inv= 702

Rim= 687.1
Inv= 675

Rim= 690.2
Inv= 667

Rim= 714.5
Inv= 700

Rim= 718.2
Inv= 694

Permanent LS
Rim= 713
Inv= 687

Rim= 716
Inv= 689

Rim= 726
Inv= 715

Rim= 749.3
Inv= 736

Rim= 718
Inv= 698

Rim= 715
Inv= 707

Rim= 748.8
Inv= 735

Rim= 720
Inv= 705

Rim= 725.4
Inv= 708

Rim= 740
Inv= 730

Rim= 731.6
Inv= 720

Rim= 748.8
Inv= 725

Rim= 727.6
Inv= 715

Rim= 724.7
Inv= 709

Rim= 736
Inv= 724

Rim= 726.2
Inv= 711.2

Rim= 728.9
Inv= 712

Rim= 727.2
Inv= 714

LS
Rim= 724.4
Inv= 700Rim= 722.5

Inv= 711

Rim= 728.2
Inv= 716

LS
Rim= 723.4
Inv= 703

Rim= 749

Rim= 741
Rim= 731
Inv= 719

Rim= 723
Inv= 713 W
Inv= 702 S

PRIVATE GRINDER, 40 GPM
WITH 2" DISCHARGE

Rim= 738
Inv= 730

Rim= 755
Inv= 741.33

18th St

C.T.H. E

8
8
th
 A
ve

    C
.T
.H
. H

C
a
n
a
d
ia
n
 P
a
c
ific

 R
a
ilro

a
d

1
0
0
th
 A
ve

C.T.H. A

1st St

94

94

38th St

Hwy 142

12th St

Initial System

[Ú Proposed Lift Station

!!!2 Proposed Manhole

» Proposed Force Main

Proposed Sewer Main, size noted

! Existing Sewer Structure

Existing Sewer Main

Subcontinental Divide

100-Yr Floodplain

8''

8''15''15''10'' 12''

10''

8''

24''

15''

24''15
''

15''

10
''

24''

8''

8'
'

FORCE MAIN

15''

12
''

10
''

10
''

8'
'

10
''

8'
'

8''

8''

12''

FM-8"

FM
-8
"

24''
24''

City of Kenosha

To
w
n 
of
 P
ar
is

Future
Kwik Trip

Future BP

BP Station

24"

24"

21"

8''
8''

15''

Rim= 725
Inv= 714

10''



G!.G!.G!.

G!.

G!.
G!. G!.G!.

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!!!!!
!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!

!!!!!!!!!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!

! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!!

"a

"a

16"

24"

20"

16
"

M
:
\
S
O
M
E
V
\
1
6
1
1
0
4
-
W
a
t
e
r
 
D
i
v
e
r
s
i
o
n
\
G
I
S
\
A
G
P
_
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
W
a
t
e
r
D
i
v
e
r
s
i
o
n
S
t
u
d
y
\
W
a
t
e
r
D
i
v
e
r
s
i
o
n
S
t
u
d
y
.
a
p
r
x
 
 
 
 
 
S
a
v
e
d
:
 
8
/
2
7
/
2
0
1
9
 
9
:
5
9
 
A
M
 
 
D
e
s
i
g
n
e
r
:
 
5
6
3
d
k
s

Source(s):  Base data from Kenosha County GIS, 2018.  Sewer by Baxter & Woodman,  and others

0 1,000 2,000500
Feet

CONCEPT PLAN
Village of Somers, WIINITIAL WATER SYSTEM

E Drains to Lake MichiganE

Drains to Mississippi River

August 30, 2019
Note:  Local Distribution Mains are not shown.

16''

18th St

C.T.H. E

8
8
th
 A
ve

    C
.T
.H
. H

C
a
n
a
d
ia
n
 P
a
c
ific

 R
a
ilro

a
d

1
0
0
th
 A
ve

C.T.H. A

1st St

94

94

38th St

Hwy 142

12th St

16"
12''

16"

12
''

12
''

16''

16''

12''

12''

16
''

16''
16''

16" 16''

16''

12
''

12
''

12"

City of Kenosha

To
w
n 
of
 P
ar
is

METERING
STATION

METERING STATION

TRANSFER STATION
(FUTURE)

SOMERS ELEVATED
STORAGE 1.5 MG

(POSSIBLE)

Initial System

! ! ! ! Proposed Water Main

Existing Water Main

Future Pressure Zone Boundary

Subcontinental Divide

KEN
O
SH

A
 BO

O
STED

 ZO
N
E 1

SO
M
ERS BO

O
STED

 ZO
N
E

16''

12''

16''

12''

12'' 12'' 12''

12''12
''

12''12
''

TRANSFER STATION
(FUTURE)

12"

CHECK VALVE
(POSSIBLE)

12''

12"

Wilks Trust

12
''

CHECK VALVE
(POSSIBLE)

16''

12''



____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
  
Project Plan TID No. 6 Creation  Village of Somers    
Submitted by Ehlers    Page 8  July 23, 2018 
 

     
 

SECTION 4:  
Map Showing Existing Uses and Conditions 

 



Tax ID Name Assessed Value 2018 Somers Portion

Somers 
Portion 

as %

 82-4-222-181-0400
JOSEPH A FUNK

CHRISTINA M FUNK $319,900.00 $1,923.04 0.0060

 82-4-222-181-0300

ALVIN R & JEAN R WILKS 
REVOCABLE TRUST
REVOCABLE TRUST $9,600.00 $57.71 0.0060

 82-4-222-181-0100 RONALD J BIRCHELL $11,100.00 $66.73 0.0060
 82-4-222-172-0202 RONALD J BIRCHELL $531,400.00 $3,194.45 0.0060

 82-4-222-182-0202
 YOSEF HAKIMI

VALENTINE HAKIMI $800.00 $4.81 0.0060

 82-4-222-182-0201
YOSEF HAKIMI

VALENTINE HAKIMI $28,000.00 $168.32 0.0060

 82-4-222-181-0200

 ALVIN R & JEAN R WILKS 
REVOCABLE TRUST
REVOCABLE TRUST $16,200.00 $97.38 0.0060

 82-4-222-172-0401
FRANCESCO M ROVELLA

NATALIE C ROVELLA $363,900.00 $2,187.54 0.0060

 82-4-222-172-0402
ALVIN R & JEAN R WILKS 

REVOCABLE TRUST $6,000.00 $36.07 0.0060
$1,286,900.00 $7,736.05

Assessed Value 2018 2018 Mill Rate
Assessed Divided 

1000 Total Taxes to all entities 
$1,286,900.00 $21.16 1286.90 $27,230.80

Proposed Taxable 
Value at Full Value 2018 Mill Rate

Assessed Divided 
1000

Total Proposed Taxes to 
all entities 

$61,500,000.00 $21.16 61500 $1,301,340.00 

Proposed Increase in 
Taxable Full Value 2018 Mill Rate

Assessed Divided 
1000

Total Increase to all 
entities 

$60,213,100.00 $21.16 60213.10 $1,274,109.20 

Estimated Somers 
Portion @ .0060 0.0060

$369,000.00 

Increase 
$361,263.95 

Estimate of Taxes



Tawani - Proposed Values
Museum $55,000,000

Museum Arch. 1 $17,500,000
Museum Arch. 2 $17,500,000
Museum Arch. 3 $20,500,000
Museum Arch. 4 $20,500,000
Private Arch. 1 $12,000,000
Private Arch.  2 $12,000,000
Private Arch.  3 $12,000,000
Private Arch. 4 $12,000,000

Gun Range $10,500,000
Club House 1 $3,000,000

Totals $192,500,000

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037

Tawani with Tax Exempt 
Values Assumed

Assessed 
Divided by 

1000
2018 Mill 

Rate
Assessed TID 

Funds

Construction
Museum

Museum 1 
Museum 2

Construction 
Priv. Arch. 1
Priv. Arch. 2
Priv. Arch. 3 
Priv. Arch. 4 

Full 
Assessed 
Museum

Museum 1 
Museum 2 

Full Assessed 
Priv. Arch. 1
Priv. Arch. 2
Priv. Arch. 3 
Priv. Arch. 4  

Construction
 Indoor Range 

Clubhouse

Full Assessed 
Indoor Range

Clubhouse  

Construction
Museum 3 
Museum 4

Full Assessed
Museum 3 
Museum 4

Museum $0 0 $21.61 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Museum Arch. 1 $0 0 $21.61 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Museum Arch. 2 $0 0 $21.61 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Museum Arch. 3 $0 0 $21.61 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Museum Arch. 4 $0 0 $21.61 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Private Arch. 1 $12,000,000 12000 $21.61 $259,320 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $259,320 $259,320 $259,320 $259,320 $259,320 $259,320 $259,320 $259,320 $259,320 $259,320 $259,320 $259,320 $259,320
Private Arch.  2 $12,000,000 12000 $21.61 $259,320 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $259,320 $259,320 $259,320 $259,320 $259,320 $259,320 $259,320 $259,320 $259,320 $259,320 $259,320 $259,320 $259,320
Private Arch.  3 $12,000,000 12000 $21.61 $259,320 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $259,320 $259,320 $259,320 $259,320 $259,320 $259,320 $259,320 $259,320 $259,320 $259,320 $259,320 $259,320 $259,320
Private Arch. 4 $12,000,000 12000 $21.61 $259,320 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $259,320 $259,320 $259,320 $259,320 $259,320 $259,320 $259,320 $259,320 $259,320 $259,320 $259,320 $259,320 $259,320

Gun Range $10,500,000 10500 $21.61 $226,905 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $226,905 $226,905 $226,905 $226,905 $226,905 $226,905 $226,905 $226,905 $226,905
Club House 1 $3,000,000 3000 $21.61 $64,830 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $64,830 $64,830 $64,830 $64,830 $64,830 $64,830 $64,830 $64,830 $64,830

Totals $61,500,000 $1,329,015 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,037,280 $1,037,280 $1,037,280 $1,037,280 $1,329,015 $1,329,015 $1,329,015 $1,329,015 $1,329,015 $1,329,015 $1,329,015 $1,329,015 $1,329,015

Tawani Provided Values - Taxable Assumes No Increase in Value or Mill Rate (Life of TID)



Actual Private Arch 1 Private Arch 2 Private Arch 3 Private Arch 4 Indoor Range Annual Total

1 2018 0 2018 1

2 2019 0 2019 2

3 2020 0 2020 3

4 2021 0 2021 4

5 2022 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 8,000,000 2022 5

6 2023 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 8,000,000 2023 6

7 2024 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 16,000,000 2024 7

8 2025 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 16,000,000 2025 8

9 2026 0 2026 9

10 2027 5,000,000 5,000,000 2027 10

11 2028 5,000,000 5,000,000 2028 11

12 2029 5,000,000 5,000,000 2029 12

13 2030 0 2030 13

14 2031 0 2031 14

15 2032 0 2032 15

16 2033 0 2033 16

17 2034 0 2034 17

18 2035 0 2035 18

19 2036 0 2036 19

20 2037 0 2037 20

Totals 0 12,000,000 12,000,000 12,000,000 12,000,000 15,000,000 63,000,000

Notes:

Construction Year Construction Year

Village of Somers, Wisconsin

Tax Increment District #6

Development Assumptions

Page 1 10/24/2019



Type of District Base Value 2,238,343

District Creation Date Appreciation Factor 0.00% Apply to Base Value

Valuation Date Jan 1, 2018 Base Tax Rate $21.61

Max Life (Years) Rate Adjustment Factor

Expenditure Period/Termination 15 1/1/2033

Revenue Periods/Final Year 20 2039

Extension Eligibility/Years Yes 3 Tax Exempt Discount Rate 3.00%

Eligible Recipient District Taxable Discount Rate 4.50%

Construction 

Year Value Added Valuation Year

Inflation 

Increment

Total 

Increment Revenue Year Tax Rate Tax Increment

Tax Exempt 

NPV 

Calculation

Taxable NPV 

Calculation

1 2018 0 2019 0 0 2020 $21.61 0 0 0

2 2019 0 2020 0 0 2021 $21.61 0 0 0

3 2020 0 2021 0 0 2022 $21.61 0 0 0

4 2021 0 2022 0 0 2023 $21.61 0 0 0

5 2022 8,000,000 2023 0 8,000,000 2024 $21.61 172,880 140,567 127,037

6 2023 8,000,000 2024 0 16,000,000 2025 $21.61 345,760 413,513 370,170

7 2024 16,000,000 2025 0 32,000,000 2026 $21.61 691,520 943,506 835,497

8 2025 16,000,000 2026 0 48,000,000 2027 $21.61 1,037,280 1,715,340 1,503,431

9 2026 0 2027 0 48,000,000 2028 $21.61 1,037,280 2,464,693 2,142,601

10 2027 5,000,000 2028 0 53,000,000 2029 $21.61 1,145,330 3,268,004 2,817,961

11 2028 5,000,000 2029 0 58,000,000 2030 $21.61 1,253,380 4,121,495 3,525,208

12 2029 5,000,000 2030 0 63,000,000 2031 $21.61 1,361,430 5,021,561 4,260,343

13 2030 0 2031 0 63,000,000 2032 $21.61 1,361,430 5,895,411 4,963,822

14 2031 0 2032 0 63,000,000 2033 $21.61 1,361,430 6,743,809 5,637,007

15 2032 0 2033 0 63,000,000 2034 $21.61 1,361,430 7,567,496 6,281,204

16 2033 0 2034 0 63,000,000 2035 $21.61 1,361,430 8,367,193 6,897,660

17 2034 0 2035 0 63,000,000 2036 $21.61 1,361,430 9,143,598 7,487,570

18 2035 0 2036 0 63,000,000 2037 $21.61 1,361,430 9,897,388 8,052,077

19 2036 0 2037 0 63,000,000 2038 $21.61 1,361,430 10,629,224 8,592,275

20 2037 0 2038 0 63,000,000 2039 $21.61 1,361,430 11,339,744 9,109,211

Totals 63,000,000 0 Future Value of Increment 17,936,300

Notes:

Actual results will vary depending on development, inflation of overall tax rates.

NPV calculations represent estimated amount of funds that could be borrowed (including project cost, capitalized interest and issuance costs).

Village of Somers, Wisconsin

Tax Increment District #6

Tax Increment Projection Worksheet

Mixed Use

January 1, 2018

20

No

Page 2 10/24/2019



1 
 

TID 6 Fiscal Analysis – Pritzker Military Archives 
 
Purpose of Analysis 
The Village has requested that I perform a fiscal review of TID 6.  The purpose of this review is to analyze 
the fiscal viability of a proposal that would develop a 288 acre parcel in the Village of Somers.  If 
approved by the Village Board, Tawani Enterprises would construct and operate the Pritzker Military 
Archives.  Details of the project were presented by Tawani Enterprises at a public meeting held on 
October 24th. 
 
The Site 
The site totals 288 acres.  183 acres of this site are buildable.  The site includes about 2,000 feet of 
interstate frontage.  About 170 acres of this site would be used to construct the museum, archives, and 
range.  Of the 288 acres, 10 would be classified as tax exempt.  The museum would be constructed on 
the non-taxable acreage.  The remainder of the 288 acres would be taxable. Much of the remaining 
acreage would have been used for the outdoor range.  This has been permanently withdrawn and 
cannot be considered in the future by virtue of the provisions of the proposed Development Agreement.  
Therefore, there are no immediate plans for the remaining 100 acres.  
 
Acreage Summary:  
Total Acreage 288 
Not usable 105 
Total usable Acres 183 
Acres planned for use:  
  Museum 30 
  Archives 45 
  Indoor range 10 
Total planned 85 
Not planned - available for future 
development 98 

 
This acreage summary is rough, and based upon a review done using the site map submitted by the 
Pritzker project team. 
 
The project is part of TID 6.  TID 6 has a total of 664 acres.  A total of 594 are developable.  If the Pritzker 
Military Archives is approved, 411 acres in TID 6 will remain to be developed.  The original finance plan 
estimated that infrastructure costs of about $22mm would be incurred to serve the development.  If this 
plan is approved, the costs for TID 6 will be reduced to less than $4mm. 
 
The Project 
Total Capital Expenditures for this project would be approximately $192.5mm, with $63mm being 
taxable, and the balance being tax exempt.  The project is expected to be built over roughly 5 years. The 
Village would incur no TID costs for this project. Tawani would pay the full cost to run utilities.  This 
utility extension would terminate at the east frontage road.  When TID 6 was initially proposed, it was 
estimated that $22mm of project costs would be incurred.  The costs included $11.7mm that was 
primarily related to utilities ($200,000 for minor roadwork), $2mm of developer incentives, and $8.4mm 



2 
 

in financing costs.  If approved by the Board, the 594 acres in TID 6 would be developable with very little 
Village construction costs.  Because Tawani would finance the utility costs, very little financing costs 
would be incurred.  Also, the Village would conserve valuable GO debt capacity.  If it is determined that 
the utilities will be extended down E, TID 3 (471 developable acres) and TID 8 (135 developable acres 
with interstate frontage) would be open to development with reduced costs to extend utilities.  The 
original cost estimate to extend utilities to TID 3 was $4.2mm. The original cost estimate to extend 
utilities to TID 8 was $4.7mm. Most of this cost would be eliminated if the Pritzker Military Archives 
project is approved. 
 
Comparison of TID 6 to TID 1 and 2 
Phase 1 of TID 6 development is proposed to serve the Pritzker Military Archives.  TID 1 is the 
development on CTH S and H owned by First Industrial.  TID 2 is the development north of Somers 
Market.  A majority of TID 2 has been developed by Bear Realty and Festival Foods. 
 
This report compares the fiscal viability of TIDs 1 and 2 to TID 6 (phase 1 relative to the Pritzker Military 
Archives).  The purpose of this comparison is to review the metrics that served to justify TIDs 1 and 2, 
and determine whether similar metrics justify the TID 6 project. 
 
The chart below shows that $11.2mm of Village expense was projected for TID 1, and $8mm of Village 
expenses were projected for TID 2.  At this point, minimal expenses (primarily administrative) are 
projected for the first phase of TID 6 (the Pritzker Military Archives).   
 
The analysis below shows that the Village will realize an increment of $7,439 per acre in TID 6.  TID 1 is 
$11,576 per acre.  TID 2 is $6,280 per acre.  However, TIDs 1 and 2 require 15 – 20 years of increment to 
pay their respective TID project costs.  TID 6 (the Pritzker phase) will require zero years of increment to 
pay project costs. 
 
Comparison of TID Districts 1,2, and 6 TID 6 - Pritzker TID 1 TID 2 
Acres 288 309 194 
Usable Acres 183 280 160 
Current taxable value NA $54,974,100  $50,483,600  
Projected taxable value $63,000,000  $150,000,000  $46,500,000  
Estimated Project Expense $0  $11,270,000  $8,000,000  
Village expense per dollar of projected taxable value $0.00  $0.08  $0.17  
Current annual tax increment NA $1,187,990  $1,090,951  
Total projected tax increments per annum $1,361,430  $3,241,500  $1,004,865  
Projected increments per usable acre $7,439  $11,576  $6,280  
chapter 18 donation 70 cents per sq. ft. includes tax 
exempt Yes Yes Yes 

Utility costs $0  $8,638,000  

NA - utilities 
already in 

place 
Utility financing costs $0  $5,540,234   
Total utility costs $0  $14,178,234   
Years of increments required to pay utilities $0  12   

 



3 
 

Conclusion: 
The fiscal metrics of TID 6 (Pritzker phase) does meet, and in some cases, exceeds the metrics that 
served to justify TIDs 1 and 2. 
 
Tax Exempt Property and Utility Payment 
$130mm of this project would be tax exempt.  However, if the tax exemption were not allowed, the 
project would be terminated and the $63mm of taxable value would never be realized.  Analysis in this 
report concludes that the fiscal justification for this project is comparable to that of TIDs 1 and 2, even 
with the tax exempt property.  This is partially due to a provision in the developer’s agreement that will 
require Tawani to pay the full up-front cost of the utilities, estimated to be $14.5mm.  
 
It is unlikely that another use, such as the types of commercial or manufacturing uses the Village has 
attracted at TIDs 1 and 2, would cost $130mm to build.  Therefore, dedicating this small 10-acre parcel 
to a tax exempt specialty building with a relatively high cost of construction loses little in taxable 
potential.  For example, TID 1 is expected to generate 4.5mm square feet on about 280 buildable acres.  
This is about 16,000 square feet per acre.  At 10 acres, a relatively small development of less than 
200,000-400,000 square feet would be built, yielding about $5mm-$10mm.  The small tax exempt 
footprint of 10 acres that would otherwise yield a small development will serve to finance $14.5mm in 
utility costs, plus about $9.3mm in financing costs.  Total savings to the Village is $23.8mm.  It would 
take a $10mm commercial building over 100 years of tax increments to pay the $23.8mm in utility costs. 
 
The Utility Agreement  
Tawani has agreed in principal to finance $14.5mm in utility costs.  The cost the Village would have 
incurred to extend these utilities is: 

  
Total estimated utility cost $14,500,000  
Total financing cost $9,300,000  
Total cost to finance utilities $23,800,000  

 
About one-half of this cost will serve the Pritzker Military Archives, and about one-half will serve other 
development.  This estimate is subject to engineering analysis.  Points of the development agreement 
may include permitting Tawani to recapture the portion of utility extension cost that is determined, by 
engineering estimate, to not benefit the Pritzker Military Archives project.  Also, if Tawani does not 
recapture this cost within 10 years, the Village will agree to repay the remainder to Tawani.  The Village 
may fund the repayment either through TID increments, or by assuming the special assessment, to be 
repaid to the Village as developers hook up. 
 
Return on Investment calculation 
The Village typically undertakes an ROI analysis on its developments.  In the event that the developers 
return on investment exceeds initial projections, a lookback provision is included in the developer’s 
agreement which would require the developer to repay certain TID costs incurred by the Village.  Tawani 
has agreed in principal to include this provision in the developer’s agreement, even though they are 
receiving no incentives, and the Village is incurring minimal TID expense. 
 
 
 



4 
 

Findings 
The financial reasons for justification of TID 6 are comparable, and in some cases superior, to the 
financial criteria that justified TIDs 1 and 2 
 
While much of TID 6 capital expenditures will be tax exempt (up to $130mm), the Village would not 
realize $63mm of taxable value in TID 6, and possibly more as the remaining 411 acres that are not part 
of the Tawani project are developed.  The $130mm specialty building occupies only 10 acres and 
supplants an immaterial amount of taxable future value. 
 
There are many other intangibles that justify this project, including jobs creation, making the Village a 
destination, and the multiplier effect of tourism. 
 
Prepared by: 
David M. Geertsen, CPA 
Village Trustee 



TASK N
o

v

D
ec

Ja
n

F
eb

M
ar

A
p

r

M
ay

Ju
n

Ju
l

A
u

g

S
ep

O
ct

N
o

v

D
ec

DESIGN PHASE

 

Water Diversion Application Review

Utility Coordination / Soil Borings

Advertise for Bids and Bid Opening

Project Award

 

CONSTRUCTION PHASE

Contract Execution

Start Construction

Construction

Start-up

PRELIMINARY PROJECT  SCHEDULE
Water and Sewer Service to the Tawani Development

Village of Somers

November, 2019

Survey and Design

Easements

20202019

Development Plans and Developer Agreement

November 6, 2019


	1 Village agenda 11-12-19
	2a 10-22-19 VB MINUTES1
	2b Vouchers
	7 8 9 10 Village Meeting Item Memo 6th Way
	7 8 9 10a 6th Street Map
	7 8 9 10b 6th Way Signed Sheets
	7 8 9 10c Ord 19-039 Amend 7.02 3.08
	7 8 9 10d Ord 19-040 Amend 7.02(N)(1)
	7 8 9 10e Ord 19-041 Amend 7.10(A)(2)(a)
	7 8 9 10f Ord 19-042 Amend 7.13(A)(50)
	11 12 13 14 Village Meeting Item Memo
	11 12 13 14a Updated Site Plan
	11 12 13 14b Plan Commission Minutes
	11 12 13 14c Updated Planning Memo from Kenosha County with Updated Application
	11 12 13 14d October 24th Presentation Materials
	11 12 13 14e Air Port Approval
	11 12 13 14f Correction Statement from Developer
	11 12 13 14g Fact Sheet from Developer
	11 12 13 14h Questions Answers from October 24th Meeting
	11 12 13 14i Developer Communication Plan
	11 12 13 14j Petition in Support of Approval
	11 12 13 14k Support Letters
	Funk Letter
	Letter in Support Of Somers Project - ER
	PMML Reference Memo - Army Historical Foundation
	Welcome to Somers - email from Chad Giles

	11 12 13 14l InitialConceptPlan_SewerSystem
	11 12 13 14m InitialConceptPlan_WaterSystem
	11 12 13 14n Map of TID 6
	11 12 13 14o Current Taxes
	Sheet1

	11 12 13 14p TID 6 Somers Assumptions Tawani
	Sheet Dave

	11 12 13 14q Increment Projections from Ehlers & Associate for the Project
	11 12 13 14r TID 6 Fiscal Analysis – Pritzker Military Archives
	11 12 13 14s Pritzker Preliminary Project Schedule



